
 

 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 p.m.  

Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 
 

 

MAYOR        CITY CLERK 
    Bryce Ward 888-4444      Kathy Weber, MMC  488-8583  

 

 COUNCIL MEMBERS        
Michael Welch-  Mayor Pro Tem    488-5834 

Thomas McGhee- Deputy Mayor Pro Tem        455-0010 

Preston Smith – Alt. Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 488-8824 

Elizabeth Holm     488-6125 

Sharron Hunter       978-5591 

Kevin McCarthy    590-0800 

   

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

  

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag   
 

3. Invocation   
  

4. Approval of the Agenda 

 

5. Approval of the Minutes  

  

6. Communications from the Mayor 

 

7.     Council Member Questions of the Mayor 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

Alaska 
 

 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, May 18, 2015 

 

 

 

 



 

 

8.     Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City Clerk  

   

9.     Ongoing Projects Report 
 

10.   Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

11.   Old Business 

 

12.    New Business 

a.   Contract amendment with Stantec (formerly USKA, Inc.) for feasibility engineering for alternative treated 

wastewater discharge options in response to “Notice of Violation”. 

 

b.  Ordinance 15-06, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 4, Revenue and Finance, 

Section 20.010, Sale of City Property. 

 

c.   Resolution 15-11, A Resolution of the City of North Pole, Alaska supporting the purchase of Pentex 

Corporation as a critical step to the timely advancement of the Interior Energy Project. 

 

 

13.    Council Comments 

 

14.    Adjournment 

 

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing impaired individuals.  

The City does require at least 48 hours’ notice to arrange for this service.  All such requests are subject to the 

availability of an interpreter.  All City Council meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are available for 

listening or duplication at the City Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday through Friday, 

8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or can be purchased for $10.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is located in City Hall, 

125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 4, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   1 
Minutes 

May 4, 2015 

 

 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, May 4, 2015 in the 

Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, May 4, 2015 to order at 7:00 

p.m. 

 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Ms. Holm       

Ms. Hunter        

Mr. McCarthy           

Mr. McGhee       

Mr. Smith       

Mr. Welch         

Mayor Ward  

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regularly scheduled meeting of the North Pole City Council to order on 

Monday, May 4, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Led by Mayor Ward 

 

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Mr. McGhee 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Agenda of May 4, 2015 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch  

 

Discussion  

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to amend the agenda to consent under New Business as follows: 

a. Memorandum of Agreement between the State of Alaska Department of Transportation and 

Public Facilities and the City of North Pole 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 4, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   2 
Minutes 

May 4, 2015 

 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

On the amendment 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7 – McGhee, Holm, Welch, Smith, Hunter, McCarthy, Ward 

No:  0  

Absent:  0 

 

On the Agenda as Amended 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7 – McGhee, Holm, Welch, Smith, Hunter, McCarthy, Ward 

No:  0  

Absent:  0 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mr. Welch moved to Approve the minutes of April 20, 2015.  

 

Seconded by Mr. McGhee 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7 – McGhee, Holm, Welch, Smith, Hunter, McCarthy, Ward 

No:  0  

Absent:  0 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

The Mayors Report for the May 4th, 2015 City Council Meeting      

 

We are seeking donations for the Trooper Park.  If you are interested in donating your time or 

resources please talk to me or Chief Dutra with the Police Dept.  Thanks to our volunteers we 

had the entire lot cleared by last Friday.  Special thanks to Weber Inc. who will begin grubbing 

and site prep, foundation detail this next week.  We still have a lot of work that needs to be done 

so come and help! 

 

Monday, May 11th at 6pm will be the festival committee meeting.  If you are interested please 

contact me or Katy Englund for details.  The 4th is on a Saturday this year so get ready for a great 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 4, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   3 
Minutes 

May 4, 2015 

 

 

time!  Flint Hills Resources has graciously agreed to come on as title sponsor again this year. 

Thank YOU! 

 

May 7th is the National Day of Prayer and New Jerusalem Church of God in Christ is hosting a 

prayer breakfast at 6am.  Council and the public are welcome to attend.  Every year the mayor 

issues the National Day of Prayer Proclamation.   

 

May 7th is also Senior Citizen Appreciation day at the Carlson Center.  It begins at 10:30am and 

is hosted by the Parks and Rec Department of the Fairbanks North Star Borough.  The three 

mayors attend and give out the awards.   

 

Cleanup Day is May 9th this year.  Bags are available at any Fire Department or the Boy Scout 

offices in Fairbanks. 

 

May 29th through the 31st the North Pole Lions are hosting a, Circus in Town, next to Mt. 

McKinley Bank. The times will be 4:30 pm and 7:00pm each day. Proceeds will go to the North 

Pole Lions.  The Lions are also hosting the Cruzin with Santa Car Show on the 30th of May.  

Hopefully we don’t have snow this year…  

 

May 11th is the official State of Alaska Bike to Work day.  I have agreed to bike to work and 

fortunately I do not have any meetings in Fairbanks as of yet.   

 

May 19th is the North Pole High School Graduation at Carlson Center, if you have a student or 

friend graduating please come join the celebration, also if you are interested in donating to the 

graduation party committee please contact the High School. 

 

Friday May 1st was the Military Appreciation dinner and I was privileged to host, on behalf of 

the City, Eielson AFB, Master Sergeant Richard Aguliar and his wife Raquel.  They have been 

here for almost three years and are leaving Alaska this year.    

 

Auditors will be here the week of May 11th.  They are willing to set up specific times to meet 

with you individually here at City Hall.  Corresponding with auditor must be done as a body and 

not individually. 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 

 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

Police Department, Chief Dutra 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 4, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   4 
Minutes 

May 4, 2015 

 

 

 Sgt. Bellant updated council on the class he took in San Jose on drug recognition. 

 

 

Fire Department, Chief Lane 

   None 

 

 

Finance, Tricia Fogarty 

 None    

 

 

Director of City Services, Bill Butler  

Building Department 

 Building permit issued for Starbucks within Safeway 

 Proposed senior housing project on Patriot Drive: FNSB Planning Department 

indefinitely delayed public hearing on Conditional Use of site pending submission of 

additional information by the developer 

 Two residential building permit applications submitted by Liberty Homes; plans under 

review 

 

Public Works 

 City street sweeping continues and will hopefully be completed by Tuesday. 

 Brush cutting as part of the Interior Gas Utility Project completed within City except for 

possible minor issues 

 Released advertisement announcing summer hire positions available 

 

Utility Department 

 Awaiting permit application for discharge of de-water water as part of the gas line project 

 Contractor plans to begin with four borings (within City) under Alaska Railroad 

tracks 

 May need to excavate into the water table which will require de-watering and they are 

applying to discharge de-watering water to City sewer system because ground water 

in area is contaminated with sulfolane 

 

 

Natural Gas Utility Board 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 4, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   5 
Minutes 

May 4, 2015 

 

 

 Memorandum of Agreement between ADOT&PF and City for DOT to provide 

inspection services of gas line excavations within city 

 IGU’s excavation permit payment to City in the form of a Reimbursable Services 

Agreement (RSA) 

 DOT will bill City for inspectors’ time performing work on City streets and City will 

pay these costs from IGU’s permit fees paid via the RSA 

 Goal is to have City’s cost covered and not to profit from IGU 

 65% design drawings for Phase 2 submitted to City for comment 

 Phase 2 will include areas the City north of Hurst Road plus other areas outside the 

City 

 

Borough Representative 

 None 

 

City Clerk, Kathy Weber 

 A short survey went out to all employees this past week and I will have the results to you 
at our meeting next week.  Craig Kestram from Alaska USA will be here to update you 
on the renewal. 

 
 The RFP for the Strategic Planning closed on Wednesday, April 22, 2015 at 2:00 p.m.  The 

RFP committee met on Thursday, April 30th and chose a vendor for the project.  That 
item will be on the next agenda. 

 Set up meeting with Aha web design to work on getting the audio from council meetings 
online. 

 On Wednesday, May 6th Alaska National Insurance Co. will be out here to audit our 
General Liability and Workmens’ Comp for the previous year. 

 I will not be here for the next meeting on May 18th.  Stephanie DeCristo will be sitting in 
for me.  I will be attending the IIMC conference in Hartford, Connecticut. 

 
 

ONGOING PROJECTS 

None 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
Phil Zastrow, 2255 Peridot 

Mr. Zastow said he is not a big fan of HC Contractors.  He said that they have damaged Peridot 

and have not fixed it after promising to do so.  Mr. Zastrow stated that they have not done any 

dust control and trucks run every 5 minutes.  He said that you can see the toxic fumes from the 

HC asphalt plant settling near the ground.  Mr. Zastrow produced pictures to show council of the 

damage to Peridot. 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 4, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   6 
Minutes 

May 4, 2015 

 

 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approved by consent agenda 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

McCarthy – said he would like to see the rate of pay raised for council members to help get 

people to run for office. 

 

McGhee –  no comment. 

 

Welch -  said it would be nice to have the council show up for employee appreciation functions.  

He said that the employees are concerned about the questionnaire they got on the medical 

insurance and is hoping that the council gets enough information prior to the meeting so they can 

ask meaningful questions and also see our employees engage in those ideas.  He agrees with Mr. 

McCarthy that we need to see about raising the stipend for the City Council to attract qualified 

people.  He believes it needs to be passed prior to the election.  He is glad to see that the streets 

are swept and are up to 17 hours of daylight. 

 

Holm – thanked Mr. Zastrow for coming out and reporting on Peridot.  She said she used to go 

around on Badger Rd to get to Peridot because the road was so bad.  Ms. Holm said that she had 

to call 911 today and had 3 officers show up to help her.  She is proud of the Police Department 

and all they do. 

 

Hunter –  it’s good to be back and wished everyone a good 2 weeks before we get back. 

 

Smith –  is happy to see people out on the bicycle paths.  The first swath of mosquitos are out.  

He sees a lot of positive things coming our way. 

 

Ward – he appreciates the staff and wonderful environment with the walking and biking.  He 

said it is encouraging seeing the public out enjoying the paths.  Mayor Ward said that any 

council member is able to draft an ordinance or resolution.   

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mr. McGhee adjourned the meeting at 7:53 p.m. 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 4, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   7 
Minutes 

May 4, 2015 

 

 

The regular meeting of May 4, 2015 adjourned at 7:53 p.m. 

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on Monday, May 18, 2015.   

 

  

       ____________________________________ 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

  

                             

_________________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk       



chise transfer at next March's
annua^l meeting.

think the policy of somebody the services and r""^,i".oo I m^o+ ô+^-+:^_ ^_we find .oir*iî"¿ ,rrä 
",rio- available., 

and resourceé 
I *"" attention, especially when dy Bridgewater, Louisville,s star
I 

rhey aren,r selectéd as early as qíJ.rt".n

we are fortunate in our community to have so many fam'yfriendly employers. This year, a reåora-¡åar.ins rgg emproyeestook the time to send in nominations.fo, roi Jirerent
employers. 51 of those employers have not been nominatedpreviously. over the years, 33g different .rprov.r, have beennominated, some many times over.

r, I

-
Eorly Childhood
Development
Conmiss ion

Fairbanks is a Family Friendly place!
I'lorth Pole police Department
Public Employer 7 - 25 emptoyeàs
Chief Steve Dutra
My supervisor endeavors constantly to
accommodate the families that woík under
him. If an officer has a schedutingloniiåiit¡
work vs. childcare, he works to rËi;Ë ii;; il;
officers can attend to their ram¡riãi. ììã ,.or;;;.,
schedules for those wíth family conflicts. ftéïuï-
even taken shifts himselfto .ou"l. fol. u¡ ofh.äl-
with a sick family member. n" uf*rvrìr'if.l"'nìrt
t9.¡gnd out notifi carions when,orãonïf.,ãi'u'
child- Days.offfor family events and the f¡tã,i"preuy much guaranteed.

ment I have worked
ays put first. Not the
us commander in law
e has pushed training
redness so that when
ng the community,
rts ln promoting the
wíth families that work

e police community.

t staying home
sick because my
ffice system where

Fairban ks Native Association
Non Profit z5+ employees
Steve Guiness, Executive Director

LifeMed Alaska
-îø pan yßusi n ess z 5+ e m p loyees
Scott Kirby, CEO & Katie Dillon,
Fairbanks Base Manager
During my initial hiri
was diagnosed with¡rierbuibããriiiriï :l'
_dj1ql9ti:, my.coileagues and managers sroJà
sreadfast behind my family, supporting us every
step ofthe way.

When I asked for five weeks offto join Mom forone.last grand adventure, ¡t was iraritej *ñü;;'
hesitation. When I needed 

" 
fl.^¡Ëiã i."rr"äË;'

care for mom while she was on f.,ospi.å,ìiwaï"
arranged- Mom died at home surrounded in love.
I was totd I could take ona, *uitr tir;;; i' '""
needed, even though I didn,r havå;;;h É;".
accrued. No worries, our HR directoriãi¿_ 

''
my-time off would stiltbe paid r."guiO-l.;.

.,At Mom's memorialserv¡ce, ari"n¡ìãiáw ofpitots, paramedics and nurses from ãri ¡ã¡rlänrc
base stood vigil in uniform at the back ofìË- ''-
church to honor Momb memory.

9.cf, ô?ttÈtd¡lf



Memo 
To: North Pole City Council 

From: Bill Butler 

Date: May 13, 2015 

Subject: Professional Services Proposal for Phase 2 response to Notice of Violation for Sewer 

Outfall  

Recommendation 

 

Accept Stantec’s proposal for $195,980.00 to generate mandatory response on behalf of the Utility to 

the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) Notice of Violation (NOV) for sewer 

outfall. 

 

Background 

 

In 2014, the City received a legislative grant for $500,000 to respond to the loss of river flow at its 

sewer outfall on the Tanana River. The Utility has experienced periodic loss of flow at the sewer 

outfall. ADEC recognizes that the loss of river flow is an act of nature; however, it still represents a 

violation of the Utility’s permit to discharge treated wastewater to the Tanana River. To date, the 

Utility has spent approximately $15,000 of the grant to respond to ADEC’s notice of violation issued 

in November 2014. The City contracted with Stantec to generate this Phase 1 response to the NOV. 

For your information, the NOV, the professional services agreement with Stantec for Phase 1 and 

Stantec’s response to the NOV on behalf of the Utility are attached. 

 

As part of the NOV, ADEC required the Utility explore several possible alternatives to correct the loss 

of river flow at the sewer outfall. The Utility in preliminary discussions with ADEC, the Department 

of Natural Resources (DNR), Stantec and our wastewater consultant, Mike Pollen of NTL, had 

proposed several possible solutions. These proposed possible solutions included: (1) a longer sewer 

main to a permanent channel of the Tanana River; (2) dredging the channel where the utility 

discharges treated wastewater; (3) construct a large pond that would function like a leech field, (4) 

request a modification of the discharge permit to allow the Utility to continue discharging even when 

the channel losses water flow, and (5) upgrading the treatment process so that the treated wastewater 

meets the water quality standard. These proposed solutions formed the basis of Stantec’s work plan to 

respond to the NOV. Stantec used these options as a starting point for their analysis. Stantec’s analysis 

looked at permitting issues, feasibility and cost to generate recommendations for the Utility. 

 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, Alaska 99705 

(907) 488-8593 

(907) 488-3002 (fax) 

bill.butler@northpolealaska.org 

City of North Pole 
Director of City Services 



ADEC and DNR quickly removed the option of continuing to discharge to the Tanana River even 

when there was a loss of river flow. Based upon their analysis, Stantec recommended the two most 

reasonable options to be (1) extending the sewer outfall main to a permanent channel of the Tanana 

River and (2) construction of a large discharge pond. The Utility agreed that these were the most 

feasible and submitted the report and recommendations to ADEC. ADEC concurred with the Utility’s 

recommendation and required the Utility to proceed to Phase 2 to investigate in greater detail the two 

approved options. The Utility asked Stantec to submit a proposal for the Phase 2 of the NOV 

response. 

 

Stantec’s proposal is attached. The cost is significant, but there is a potential that the final cost will be 

less. Stantec structured the investigation to perform initial percolation tests for the discharge pond first. 

If the Utility’s new land does not prove to be acceptable for a percolation pond, Stantec will not 

proceed to the large-scale percolation test. Not having to do the large-scale percolation test could save 

in excess of $30,000. As part of the Utility’s discharge permit, it has to periodically perform effluent 

toxicity testing and other laboratory tests. The effluent testing needed for the proposed engineering 

options is unknown at this time and will be dependent upon the additional engineering of the different 

solutions. The proposal includes a time and materials figure of $15,000 for laboratory testing. This 

funding will only be spent for the tests need as the engineering dictates. In addition, existing testing 

performed by the Utility could be adequate. Stantec was being prudent including a time and materials 

request for laboratory testing because the Utility will only be charged if the work is performed. 

 

One of the important products Stantec will produce as part of Phase 2 is design drawings to the 35% 

level. Design drawings to this level are necessary to generate reliable cost estimates for each of the 

proposed options. Cost will be a significant factor in the process of selecting a preferred solution. In 

addition, proceeding with the final design and engineering for the approved option should reduce 

these cost because the engineer will only have to generate the 65% and 95% design drawings.  



 

 

 

 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 

2515 A Street 

Anchorage AK  99503-2709 

Tel: (907) 276-4245 

Fax: (907) 258-4653 

  

   

 

May 13, 2015 

 

Bill Butler 

Director of City Services 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, AK 99705 

 

Project: City of North Pole Wastewater Effluent Discharge Alternatives Study 

Subject: Phase 2 - Professional Services Fee Proposal 

 

Dear Mr. Butler: 

 

In preliminary “Phase 1” investigations for the subject project,  Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 

(Statnec)completed conceptual development and regulatory scoping activities for five 

alternatives intended to correct the City of North Pole’s (CONP) wastewater treatment plants 

(WWTP) discharge permit violations caused by loss of flows in the receiving river braid.  Of the five 

alternates, two were found to be potentially viable and achievable by CONP: 

 

Alternate 3; Construct New Discharge to Tanana River 

Alternate 4; Construct Effluent Infiltration Pond 

 

These alternatives are discussed in the Preliminary Discharge Study of March 6, 2015.  Each of the 

alternatives has merits, but each also has regulatory and engineering challenges.    Additional 

investigation, design, and regulatory negotiations are required to further validate the alternatives 

and select the preferred course of action. 

 

On April 7, 2015, the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation, (ADEC) directed CONP 

to: 

a. Complete the evaluations necessary to select a final course of action between 

alternatives 3 and 4; 

b. Provide a project timeline for executing the chosen course of action, to include all 

phases of construction, agency approvals and other limiting factors; 

c. Provide a projected project completion date. 

 

ADEC has requested this effort be completed by July 31, 2015.   To comply with the ADEC 

direction, Stantec proposes the following tasks and scope of work: 

 

Task 1 - Investigations 

Task 1A – Wetlands and Habitat Delineation.   Wetland and habitat resources impacted by the 

alternatives need to be more specifically identified.  Stantec will include figures showing relevant 

wetlands and critical habitat information from USACE and wildlife agency maps and resources. 

This information will identify areas where mitigation measures may be required, an important 

consideration in cost estimating.   This is a paper study with limited ground investigation; field 

delineation of wetlands if ultimately required, will be deferred until design of the final selected 

alternative.   



 

Bill Butler 

Director of City Services 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, AK 99705       Page 2 of 4  

 

Task 1B – Topographic Survey.  For this phase, Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) mapping and 

LiDAR topography will be the basis for our work.  However, this data is not accurate in dense 

vegetation, and will not have river bed elevations.  Limited Topographic survey will be conducted 

to collect river elevations in the area of the proposed discharge, along with several elevations for 

LiDAR confirmation.  This will include establishing horizontal and vertical control at the infiltration 

pond site relative to the existing ponds. The survey task also produces the background maps that 

will be used for preparation of the concept plans.     Control set during this survey will be useful in 

the future when the actual design survey is done. 

Task 1C – Geotechnical Investigation.   Shannon & Wilson will provide geotechnical investigation 

for the infiltration pond alternative.   Some of the data will come from S&W’s inventory of existing 

data in the North Pole area, but site specific exploration and tests are needed for the infiltration 

pond. S&W will conduct borings on the new City lot, and perform percolation testing to determine 

how fast / how much effluent can be applied to the soil and groundwater table.  This will confirm if 

an infiltration pond will work or not, and be used to determine how big the pond will need to be.   

S&W’s work includes a total of 9 borings, 3 percolation tests, 3 ground water piezometers, 2 “large 

scale” infiltration tests, the geotechnical report, and mob / demob of track mounted drill rig,   

backhoe, and water trucks.  The two “large scale” infiltration tests are needed to examine ability 

of the groundwater table to continuously infiltrate water for long periods of time.  The procedure 

involves excavation of test pits of various sizes to the ground water level, and continuously filling 

the pit with water for a day or more to measure saturated infiltration capacity.     Because of the 

scale of these tests, they are relatively expensive, and account for about half of the overall 

geotechnical costs.   We will perform the ordinary borings and percolation tests first;  in the event 

these tests suggest infiltration is not feasible,  we will delete the large scale tests and not bill CONP 

for those. 

 

Task 1D  -  Eagle Nest Survey.      While eagles are occasionally present in the North Pole area, this 

is not preferred habitat, and eagle nests are unlikely to interfere with the project.   Eagle Nest 

surveys can be costly, and generally require aerial inspection of the project area.     For this 

reason, we have not included a nest survey at this time.   We will coordinate this issue with Fish and 

Game, and the surveyors and engineers will take note if Eagles are seen on site, but we expect to 

be able to address this item administratively rather than with survey. 

 

Task 1E  -  Effluent Testing (Contingency Task).    For Alternative 3, it is assumed that a discharge to 

the river will require a new mixing zone similar to the existing one.   While not required today, within 

the next 5 years, it is likely that effluent ammonia toxicity and nutrient loading limits will be 

incorporated into the CONP’s discharge permit.   For that reason, additional testing of the effluent 

may be needed to complete the final design and permit processes.  This will include nutrient load 

assessment (nitrate, nitrite, other nitrogen forms, and phosphorus), and whole effluent toxicity 

(WET) testing which, shows whether the effluent is compatible with aquatic life and 

microorganisms.    We won’t know exactly what tests are required,  or when they will be needed 

until we consult further with ADEC.   For the time being, we have included an allowance ($15,000) 

for laboratory services and testing labor in the fee.   This work will be done T&M, and you will only 

be invoiced for actual effort required.  

 



 

Bill Butler 

Director of City Services 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, AK 99705       Page 3 of 4  

 

Task 2 – Hydrologic Analysis and Groundwater Study 

This task includes analysis of the infiltration testing, and development of size requirements for the 

infiltration pond.  This task is performed by a combination of S&W and Stantec resources. Should 

the pond alternative not be feasible, efforts on that alternative will end with this task. Based on 

statements from ADEC Contaminated Sites Program collected during the Phase 1 investigations, it 

has been assumed that analysis of the sulfolane plume will not be required.  

Task 3 – Wastewater Treatment Engineering 

Task 3A -  Schematic Drawings.  This task includes engineering development of the two alternates 

to a 20-35% level of completion,  and the preparation of schematic drawings. 

 

Task 3B Design Study Report.   Along with the schematic drawings, we will prepare construction 

cost estimates, and a report evaluating the advantages / disadvantages / technical feasibility of 

each alternative.   We will include a discussion of likely operating costs.  This task also examines 

freezing potential of the alternatives.   Cost estimates will be sufficient for funding applications. 

 

Background data was developed sufficiently during the Phase 1 report.   This Design Study Report 

will be focused on validation and final selection of a single preferred alternative.  We anticipate 

preparing a draft and final report, with a review conference following the draft submittal with 

CONP, ADEC and / or other agencies as may be desired.  

 

Task 4 – Environmental Activities 

The Phase 1 preliminary report prepared earlier this year includes a good overview of critical issues 

and scoping activities to date. Additional environmental activities will be minimized, and we do 

not intend to repeat the environmental scoping process at this time.    However, work will continue 

with several agencies such as Fairbanks North Star Borough,  FEMA,  DNR,  etc.,  on specific items 

that were identified in the Phase 1 report.   This includes resolution of flood protection requirements 

for the infiltration pond alternative, and future discharge permit criteria. 

 

The need for eagles nest, cultural or historic resource surveys, and other specialized environmental 

activities as may be required by future funding source  (i.e., EPA,  categorical exclusion, etc.),  are 

not included at this time. If found to be required, these items will be scoped with the City for 

additional services or incorporated into the final project design.    

Fee Proposal 

The total fee for all services is $195,980 to be performed on a lump sum basis (the $15,000 T&M 

allowance for effluent testing is included in this total).  A worksheet showing the costs and 

assumptions associated with each task is attached.   The project will be invoiced monthly, on a 

percent completed basis for each task. 

 

 





Work Plan Item Estimated Fee Basis

Task 1 Investigations

Project Kickoff / Site Visits $5,710.00 Kickoff meetings, site visits,  overall project coordination and 

management.

Wetlands and Habitat $3,540.00 Extension of the scoping efforts previously conducted, narrowed to 

design as developed, with negotiations and site visit and 

documentation of wetlands, habitat and environmental 

considerations that may impact design and permitting.

Topographic Survey $17,690.00 Collection of survey data at existing and proposed outfall locations, 

river elevations,  integration with aerial and LIDAR data,  setting 

elevation control for infiltration ponds.

Geotechnical $62,710.00 Includes total of (9) 25 foot borings,   (3) percolation tests on WWTP 

property for infiltration pond option, (2)  large scale infiltration 

tests,   mob /demob of a track rig for drilling work,    backhoe and 

water trucks for infiltration tests,  tree clearing for access 

Eagle Nest Survey $0.00 Not included at this time.

Effluent Testing 

(Contingency)

$15,000.00 Effluent sampling and testing beyond WWTP routine sampling,  for 

nutrient load assessment (3 sets nitrate, nitrite, nitrogen, 

phosphorous), ammonia,  and whole effluent toxicity (WET) testing 

for impact to aquatic organisms and health hazards.  (2 sets WET).

WWTP may have some of this data already,  so this item will be 

performed T&M not to exceed specified budget.

Task 2 Hydraulic And Groundwater 

Analysis

$18,860.00 Includes analysis of percolation testing,  characterization of existing 

soils and sites, and general geotechnical recommendations

Schematic Drawings $28,800.00 Preliminary engineering development of the two alternatives, and  

preparation of drawings to the 20-35% level of completion, as 

needed to evaluate construction cost and feasibility.

Cost Estimates $4,160.00 Unit price, line item construction cost estimate for each alternative.   

Will also examine operational costs for each alternative.

Draft Design Study Report $16,990.00 Report will evaluate feasibility of the two alternatives,  advantages, 

/ disadvantages,  technical feasibility and / or concerns, address 

agency issues raised during the preliminary investigation (Phase 1 ) 

report, and make recommendation for preferred alternative.

ADEC / CONP Review 

Conference

$4,240.00 Assumes one in-person review conference in Fairbanks.

Final Design Study Report $8,650.00 Incorporates CONP and ADEC review comments, finalizes the design 

study report and selection of preferred alternative.

Printing and Misc Materials included in above items. Assumes total of two submittals,  5 hard copies each, color figures, 

dwgs, etc.  Will also be provided as electronic PDF.    Includes 

allowance for misc office supplies, phone, etc.

Task 4 Environmental Activities

Agency Coordination $9,630.00 Meetings with ADEC,  FEMA,  FNSB, etc, as needed to define and 

resolve regulatory concerns and comments collected during Phase 1 

Agency Scoping process.

Agency Scoping Meeting $0.00 Previously completed in Phase 1

 Permit Negotiations $0.00 Not included at this time.

Environmental Document 

(CATEX, EIS)

$0.00 Not included at this time.

Total Estimated Fee $195,980.00

The following Engineering Services estimate is to support examination of Alternatives 3 and 4 for replacement of the existing City of North 

Pole wastewater effluent discharge system.    Scope and assumptions are as specified in the notes below,   please refer to the complete 

proposal letter dated May 13, 2015, for complete details.

NORTH POLE WASTEWATER EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY - PHASE 2

Task 3 Wastewater Treatment Engineering

Page 1 of 1



Department of EnvironmentalTHE STATE 
Conservation 

DIVISION OF WATER 01ALASKA Compliance Program 
610 University Avenue 

GOVERNOR SEAN PARNELL Fairbanks, AK 99709 
Main: 907.451.2298 

Fax: 907.451.2187 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Failure to Comply with Permit Conditions under 18 AAC 83.405(b) 

Mr. William Butler 
Director of City Services 
City of North Pole ru ~ ©~ n. \TI ~ rm125 Snowman Lane 
North Pole, AK 99705 llfil NOV 0 3 20\4 ~ 

By Enforcement Tracking No. 14-0154-50-0001 

File No 100.45.012 

The Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) alleges that beginning on or about May 3, 2012 
and continuing until the present, the City of North Pole (CONP) did unlawfully fail to comply with the 
conditions of the Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (APDES) Permit Number AK0021393 
for the Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) in North Pole, Alaska. Section I.D,. of the permit requires 
the permittee to conduct surface water monitoring at the outside edge of the mixing zones during summer 
conditions Gune 1 through September 30) and winter conditions (October 1 through May 31). 

May 3. 2012. Dry Channel. Non-Compliance Notification: The CONP notified DEC that the CONP was 
unable to conduct the requisite summer surface water monitoring at the outside edge of the mixing zone 
due to a lack of flow (from the main stem of the Tanana River) at Outfall 001 (the point of discharge into 
the channel). On May 23, 2012, DEC personnel met with CONP officials for a field inspection of the area 
and documented the loss of the river flow. The CONP advised that there were no known previous 
instances of the channel going dry, and it was possible the event was anomalous. 

A DEC inspection report, dated June 13, 2012, documented the May 23, 2012 field inspection of 
the Tanana River in the vicinity of Outfall 001. The inspection report documented the DEC 
Inspector's observation of the loss of river flow at the outfall, and included as a corrective action 
item for the CONP to provide a detailed written description of its intentions regarding contingency 
planning for the possible relocation of the outfall in the future. 

On June 19, 2013, DEC received a letter from the CONP discussing its then-current engineering analysis 
for the WWTF and design upgrade project. This project was described as encompassing a number of 
alternatives such as extending the existing outfall main into an active channel of the Tanana River. The 
CONP also stated that the 2012 dry channel instance was the first in twenty years, and advocated installing 
"signage spaced along the open flow path of treated wastewater to the point it reaches the Tanana River." 



October 9. 2013. Dry Channel. Non-Compliance Notification: 
On October 9, 2013, the CONP notified DEC that winter surface water monitoring at the outside edge of 
the mixing zone revealed that total chlorine residuals exceeded permit limits. Upon further investigation, 
the WWTF operator once again found a lack of river flow at Outfall 001. 

The CONP subsequently requested a meeting with DEC and Department of Natural Resources 
staff to discuss the lack of mixing zone. At the meeting, which was held on December 2, 2013, the 
CONP provided an update regarding the status of flow at Outfall 001, and advised that there now 
was hydrologic reason to believe the main river channel is continuing to move further south and 
will no longer be able to recharge the outfall channel. A second meeting was held on April 10, 2014. 

To begin to address the violation(s) described above, the Department requests that you submit by 
December 15, 2014 a detailed evaluation of the alternative design upgrades that would be necessary. The 
evaluation must include a consideration of the permits and approvals necessary for each alternative. Thus 
we can start the process for negotiating effective corrective actions and appropriate conditions for permit 
renewal. 

Penalties for violation of State statutes and regulations may be quite serious. In a civil action, a person who 
violates or causes or permits to be violated a provision of the above-cited regulations may be liable to the 
State under AS 46.03.760 for substantial monetary damages. 

In a criminal prosecution under AS 46.03. 790, a person who acts with criminal negligence may be guilty of 
a Class A misdemeanor, and each day of violation may be considered a separate violation. Upon conviction, 
a defendant who is not an organization may be sentenced to pay a fine not exceeding $10,000.00 for each 
separate violation, see AS 46.03. 790(g), and/or sentenced to a definite term of imprisonment of not more 
than one year, see AS 12.55.135(a). Upon conviction, a defendant that is an organization may be sentenced 
to pay a fine not exceeding the greater of $500,000.00 or an amount which is three times the pecuniary 
damage or loss caused by the defendant to another or property of another. Alaska law allows the State to 
pursue both civil and criminal actions concurrently. 

Nothing in this notice shall be construed as a waiver of the State's authority or as an agreement on the part 
of the State to forego the judicial or administrative enforcement of the above-described violation(s) or the 
recovery of damages, costs, and penalties as prescribed by law. In addition, nothing herein shall be 
construed as a waiver of enforcement for past, present, or future violations not specifically set forth herein. 

If you have additional questions, I may be contacted at 907.451.2298 or via e-mail: 
tiffany.larson@alaska.gov. 

-<#z-
Enforcement Officer 
Credential No. R-0186 

Check One: 
( ) Personally Served 
(X) Sent by Certified Mail 
# 7010 1060 0001 4982 3367 
on the 30 day of October, 2014 

cc: 	 Brian Doyle, DEC (email only) 
Marie Klingman ,DEC (email only) 
Tonya Bear, DEC (email only) 

mailto:tiffany.larson@alaska.gov
http:500,000.00
http:10,000.00
























Preliminary Wastewater 
Effluent Discharge Study and 
Environmental Summary 
Report 

 
City of North Pole  

 

Prepared for: 
City of North Pole 

Prepared by: 
Stantec Consulting Ltd. 

 
 

 

3/6/2015 
Insert revision record





CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

i 

Table of Contents 

ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS ............................................................................................ III 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................. 1.1 
1.1 PROJECT BACKGROUND ................................................................................................. 1.1 
1.2 PROJECT PLANNING AREA .............................................................................................. 1.1 

1.2.1 Existing Wastewater Facilities ....................................................................... 1.3 
1.2.2 Environmental Resources ............................................................................. 1.4 

2.0 PROPOSED ALTERNATIVES ............................................................................................ 2.1 
2.1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................ 2.1 
2.2 ALTERNATIVE 1 - REESTABLISH CHANNEL FLOW ............................................................ 2.2 

2.2.1 Permits and Approvals .................................................................................. 2.3 
2.2.2 Information Needs ......................................................................................... 2.4 
2.2.3 Costs ................................................................................................................. 2.4 

2.3 ALTERNATIVE 2 - MODIFY AND/OR RE-PERMIT EXISTING OUTFALL ............................. 2.5 
2.3.1 Permits and Approvals .................................................................................. 2.5 
2.3.2 Information Needs ......................................................................................... 2.5 
2.3.3 Costs ................................................................................................................. 2.6 

2.4 ALTERNATIVE 3 - CONSTRUCT NEW DISCHARGE TO TANANA RIVER ........................ 2.6 
2.4.1 Permits and Approvals .................................................................................. 2.8 
2.4.2 Information Needs ......................................................................................... 2.8 
2.4.3 Costs ................................................................................................................. 2.9 

2.5 ALTERNATIVE 4 - CONSTRUCT EFFLUENT INFILTRATION POND .................................. 2.10 
2.5.1 Permits and Approvals ................................................................................ 2.11 
2.5.2 Information Needs ....................................................................................... 2.11 
2.5.3 Costs ............................................................................................................... 2.13 

2.6 ALTERNATIVE 5 - MODIFY WWTP TO MEET WATER QUALITY STANDARDS AT 
POINT OF DISCHARGE .................................................................................................... 2.14 
2.6.1 Permits and Approvals ................................................................................ 2.17 
2.6.2 Information Needs ....................................................................................... 2.17 
2.6.3 Costs ............................................................................................................... 2.18 

3.0 AGENCY AND STAKEHOLDER SCOPING ..................................................................... 3.1 
3.1 SCOPING ACTIVITY ........................................................................................................... 3.1 

3.1.1 ADEC Teleconference .................................................................................. 3.1 
3.2 RESPONSES ......................................................................................................................... 3.2 
3.3 ISSUES IDENTIFIED ............................................................................................................... 3.2 

4.0 DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS .................................................................... 4.1 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

ii

LIST OF FIGURES 
Figure 1: Location and Vicinity Map ......................................................................................... 1.2 
Figure 2: Proposed Alternatives.................................................................................................. 1.1 
Figure 3: Effluent Infiltration and Re-Permit Alternatives ........................................................ 1.2 

 LIST OF TABLES 
Table 1: Alternate 3 Cost Summary ........................................................................................... 2.9 
Table 2: Alternate 4 Cost Summary ......................................................................................... 2.13 
Table 3: Sample Contact Recreation Water Quality Standards ........................................ 2.15 
Table 4: Alternative 5 Cost Summary ...................................................................................... 2.18 
Table 5: Alternative Comparison ............................................................................................... 4.1 

LIST OF APPENDICES 

Appendix A Scoping Letter Mailing List ........................................................................... A.1 

Appendix B Scoping Letter ................................................................................................ B.1 

Appendix C Scoping Responses ....................................................................................... C.1 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

iii

Acronyms and Abbreviations 

µg microgram
ACGP APDES Construction General Permit 
ADEC Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation 
ADF&G Alaska Department of Fish and Game 
ADNR Alaska Department of Natural Resources 
APDES Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
BMP best management practice 
CONP City of North Pole 
EPA Environmental Protection Agency 
FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency 
FNSB Fairbanks North Star Borough 
gpm gallons per minute 
GPS global positioning system
hp horsepower
L liters
lbs. pounds
LOMR-F Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill  
mg milligrams
MS4 municipal separate storm sewer system 
NMFS National Marine Fisheries Service 
NOV notice-of-violation
PER preliminary engineering report
sf square foot
Stantec Stantec Consulting Ltd.  
UPC Uniform Plumbing Code 
USACE U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
USFWS U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
WET whole effluent toxicity 
WWTP wastewater treatment plant



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT  

  1.1 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
The City of North Pole (CONP) has retained Stantec Consulting Ltd. (Stantec) to investigate 
potential means of correcting a non-compliant wastewater discharge to the Tanana River. 
While the CONP has a valid discharge permit, recent and seasonal variations in river flows result 
in periodic loss of the discharge mixing zone. This in turn results in violations of the Alaska 
Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) discharge permit.  

The focus of this report is the preliminary evaluation of alternatives – examining their potential 
feasibility, study needs, permitting requirements and potential construction costs for each 
alternative. It is not intended to be an exhaustive evaluation of all elements of the alternatives.  
Rather, this report is intended to identify the most practical or feasible alternatives for 
investigation and evaluation in a full engineering feasibility study.  The final feasibility study will 
determine the means for the CONP to address non-compliant effluent discharges. 

1.1 PROJECT BACKGROUND 

The CONP operates a wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) with four, partially mixed, aerated 
lagoons for treatment, and with a chlorination and dechlorination disinfection  system as shown 
in Figure 1. The ADEC Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (APDES) discharge permit for 
the CONP WWTP allows the utility to discharge treated wastewater to a channel of the Tanana 
River with a mixing zone.  Naturally changing geomorphic conditions upstream and elsewhere in 
the river appear to have caused the side channel to experience periodic reduction and / or loss 
of flow on multiple occasions since May 2012.  It is not clear if this is a permanent condition or 
not.  However, during these low flow periods, the mixing zone is compromised, and the 
predominant flow in the channel is treated effluent from the WWTP. Following a series of 
meetings and other discussions, the ADEC issued a notice of violation (NOV) in October 2014. 
The NOV requires the CONP to submit “a detailed evaluation of the alternative design upgrades 
that would be necessary. The evaluation must include a consideration of the permits and 
approvals necessary for each alternative.1” This report is intended to comply with the NOV’s 
evaluation requirement.  

1.2 PROJECT PLANNING AREA 

CONP is a Home Rule Charter city within the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) incorporated in 
1953. It is governed by a strong mayor and six City council members as the place “where the 
spirit of Christmas lives year round.” CONP provides residents with street maintenance, police, 
fire, and emergency medical services. In limited areas of the community, primarily south of the 
Richardson Highway, municipal water and wastewater services are also available. The City has 
an annual operating budget of approximately $5 million funded largely by a 4 percent sales tax 
and 3.0 mil property tax, with the utility funded separately by water and sewer service rates. 
                                                      
1 Larson, Tiffany. Notice of Violation, Enforcement Tracking No 14-0154-50-0001, File. No. 
100.45.012. Dated 30 October 2014. 



SCALE IN FEET

0 500 1000 2000 3000 4000

NORTH
POLE

LOCATION MAP

CITY OF NORTH
POLE
BOUNDARY

EXISTING EFFLUENT
DISCHARGE

EXISTING NORTH POLE
WASTEWATER TREATMENT
PLANT

www.STANTEC.com

544 4th Avenue,
Suite 102
Fairbanks, Alaska 99701
(907) 452-2128

03/06/2015 1

PROJECT AREA



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT  

  1.3 
 

1.2.1 Existing Wastewater Facilities 

The existing WWTP includes four partially mixed facultative wastewater lagoons and a treatment 
building where monitoring, chlorination, and dechlorination occur. The facility was constructed 
in approximately 1985 and sits on a 19.8-acre parcel within a fenced enclosure of approximately 
15 acres. Working with USKH Inc. (now Stantec) the CONP conducted a thorough system review 
of the WWTP in 2012 with the aim of proposing rehabilitation needs for an additional 20-year 
lifespan. The resulting City of North Pole Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Preliminary 
Engineering Report (PER, June 2012) included limited consideration of the existing outfall. Initial 
phases of the recommended work from the PER were constructed in 2014/15 in the first major 
WWTP rehabilitation project for the CONP. The project consisted of the addition of an 
emergency power generator, rehabilitation of the effluent liftstation; replacing the aeration 
piping supply lines, aeration blowers, and Cell 2 supply piping; replacing building heating and 
ventilation systems; rehabilitation of the disinfection system; upgrading the telecommunications, 
security and fire alarm systems, along with associated and ancillary structural repairs and other 
improvements. 

In its current configuration, treated effluent flows from the WWTP by gravity down approximately 
3,600 LF of effluent main to the Tanana River. The effluent then discharges at the river in a 
subsurface structure that is beneath rocks in the riverbed. This system was constructed prior to 
1985, and no design or construction drawings are available after the tie-in point for the 1985 
construction just north of the midline of Cell 2. The 1985 drawings suggest the effluent main is 6-
inch pipe. When the current WWTP was expanded, construction included the addition of an 
effluent lift station within the WWTP building, to convert the gravity discharge into a forcemain 
discharge capable of handling the increased plant flows. In practice, the lift station is not used 
very much, and treated effluent flows via gravity to the river.  

The WWTP discharge is permitted under APDES Permit AK0021393, which is scheduled to expire 
May 31, 2013, but has been administratively continued. Under the permit, the CONP has a 
mixing zone of 9 meters (30 feet) long in the summer to 267 meters (875 feet) in the winter 
located in a small side channel of the Tanana River. The permit requires the CONP to conduct 
surface water monitoring at the outside edge of the zone during summer conditions (June 1 
through September 30) and winter conditions (October 1 through May 31). In May 2012 the 
CONP notified the ADEC that it could not conduct the request monitoring due to lack of river 
flow. In October 2013, the CONP again found that the discharge was not in compliance 
because of loss of river flow. Following a series of meetings and other discussions, the ADEC 
issued a notice-of-violation in October 2014.  



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT  

  1.4 
 

1.2.2 Environmental Resources 

An overview of potential resources in the project area was conducted as a preliminary step in 
determining alternatives so that impacts could be considered and minimized as the alternatives 
were outlined. The following sections outline the results of the area  resource review. 

Wetlands and Waters of the U.S. 

A review of the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) National Wetlands Inventory show 
wetlands within the proposed project study area, which will be avoided to the extent 
practicable by routing were feasible in previously disturbed corridors. Complete avoidance of 
wetlands and Waters of the U.S. for construction alternatives is likely not to be feasible. Where 
impacts may occur to wetlands or within ordinary high water of Waters of the U.S. (Tanana 
River), a United States Army Corps of Engineers Clean Water Act Section 404 permit will be 
required.  

Fish and Wildlife:  

A variety of wildlife can be expected within the City limits and near the WWTP including moose, 
squirrels, beaver, and hares and the occasional fox and black bear. A variety of waterbirds, 
hawks, and passerines can also be found in this area, including the bald eagle and some state 
species of concern (Townsend’s Warbler, Olive-sided Flycatcher, Blackpoll Warbler, and Gray-
cheeked Thrush). No threatened or endangered species are recorded in the area. An aerial 
eagle nest survey has not been completed for the proposed project study area at this time.   

Local fish include arctic char, chum, chinook and coho salmon, rainbow trout, and northern 
pike. The Alaska Department of Fish and Game (ADF&G) Fish Resource Monitor identifies the 
Tanana River as an anadromous water body due to the presence of Chum, Coho, and Chinook 
salmon and a Fish Habitat Permit will be required for work in the river. However, no Essential Fish 
Habitat exists for any protected species under the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and 
Management Act within the proposed project area vicinity. There is a potential that a new 
outfall location will be in spawning habitat, which will preclude the use of a mixing zone. The 
reach of the Tanana being considered for a new discharge is designated only for the presence 
of salmon and the specific location in question will need to be evaluated for spawning habitat 
potential to avoid impacts.  



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT  

  1.5 
 

Land Use:   

A review of the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) Geographical Information System and 
Property Database indicates the State of Alaska owns the bed of the Tanana River with 
management responsibility under the Alaska Department of Natural Resources (ADNR); 
therefore, a ADNR Land Use Permit or permanent easement may be required.  Other lands in the 
project vicinity are owned by the FNSB, which may require a Condition Use Permit, and the City 
of North Pole, which may request a Building Permit.  The North Pole Land Use Plan indicates that 
a nearby area on the other side of the Tanana River Levee is being considered for an off 
highway vehicle use (recreational) area.  Construction alternatives will need to comply with all 
FNSB and CONP zoning, permits, and best management practices.  

Floodplains:   

North Pole is adjacent to the Tanana River, but is protected from flooding by a long levee that 
parallels the river all the way to the City of Fairbanks and the Moose Creek Dam to its southeast. 
The dam and levee, along with a floodway, were constructed in the 1970s for the Chena River 
Flood Control Project. North Pole’s surrounding sloughs (Chena, Beaver Springs, Piledriver, and 
Twenty-three Mile) are now primarily fed by groundwater2.  

The current discharge channel is part of the braid-plain of the Tanana River. A review of the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Maps identified both 
Special Flood Hazard Areas and Floodway Areas within the project study area, including at the 
point of discharge. It should be noted that if the new facilities must be located in the floodplain, 
adequate documentation will be required to support the need for impacting a designated 
floodplain for a critical facility.  A Flood Plain Permit will be required from the FNSB and if a 
construction alternative requiring extensive fill within the floodplain is selected, a FEMA Letter of 
Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F) may be necessary. A LOMR-F has been previously 
completed  for the WWTP and lagoons, based on their elevations. 

Contaminated Sites, Spills, Underground Storage Tanks, and Hazardous Materials:   

A review of the ADEC Contaminated Sites Program Database found several active 
contaminated sites within the overall vicinity. No contaminated sites are in the direct vicinity of 
the WWTP or current outfall location. There are two identified sites of interest. The Golden Valley 
Electric Association North Pole Power Plant (Hazard ID 2318) is listed as an active contaminated 
site for diesel range organics. The nearby, inactive Flint Hills Refinery south of the WWTP (Hazard 
ID 539) is listed as an active contaminated site and includes a sulfolane plume that has affected 
much of the CONP. 

  

                                                      
2 Ihlenfeldt, Nancy. 2006. Restoration of Sloughs in the Fairbanks North Star Borough (Tanana 
River Watershed). Alaska Department of Natural Resources. 



www.STANTEC.com

544 4th Avenue,
Suite 102
Fairbanks, Alaska 99701
(907) 452-2128

03/06/2015

SCALE IN FEET

0 500 1000 1500 2000

2

ALTERNATIVE 3:
CONSTRUCT NEW  DISCHARGE TO
TANANA RIVER

ALTERNATIVE 1:
REESTABLISH
CHANNEL FLOW

ALTERNATIVE 2:
MODIFY AND/OR RE-PERMIT
EXISTING OUTFALL

ALTERNATIVE 4:
CONSTRUCT EFFLUENT  INFILTRATION POND

ALTERNATIVE 5:
MODIFY WWTP TO MEET WATER QUALITY
STANDARDS AT POINT OF DISCHARGE



SCALE IN FEET

0 100 200 400 600 800

www.STANTEC.com

544 4th Avenue,
Suite 102
Fairbanks, Alaska 99701
(907) 452-2128

03/06/2015

AND
RE-PERMIT ALTERNATIVES

3

ALTERNATIVE 2:
MODIFY AND/OR RE-PERMIT
EXISTING OUTFALL

ALTERNATIVE 4:
CONSTRUCT EFFLUENT  INFILTRATION POND

ALTERNATIVE 5:
MODIFY WWTP TO MEET WATER QUALITY
STANDARDS AT POINT OF DISCHARGE



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.1

2.0 PROPOSED ALTERNATIVES 
Initially four alternatives were identified for evaluation and scoping with agencies and 
stakeholders. These alternatives are: 

1. Reestablishing Channel Flow

2. Modify and/or Re-permit Existing Outfall

3. Construct New Discharge to Tanana River

4. Construct Effluent Infiltration Pond

Each of these alternatives is discussed further in the following sections, particularly with respect 
to the scope of the proposed development, the regulatory requirements, the challenges, and 
the information needed for further evaluations. A preliminary cost estimate is also provided to 
aid in consideration. Section 3.0 specifically discusses the agency and stakeholder scoping 
efforts that were conducted in the development of this report. During the scoping effort only 
one additional alternative was identified for consideration as a modification of Alternative 2 - 
Modify and/or Re-permit Existing Outfall, and that is  

5. Modify WWTP to Meet Water Quality Standards at Discharge

2.1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

To develop reasonable alternatives to address WWTP discharge with minimal redundancy, and 
to meet the project objectives of developing a fundable, sustainable rehabilitation project that 
can be permitted, the following should be considered typical requirement for most, if not all, 
projects: 

• The design of all wastewater facilities must comply with ADEC Wastewater Disposal
regulations (18 AAC 72). Designs must be submitted to the ADEC for plan review prior to
construction.

• The CONP has adopted Utility Standards that require compliance with state regulations
and current Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC). The Utility Standards generally address the
design of the wastewater collection system and the water distribution system, but do not
speak to wastewater treatment or sludge disposal facilities.

• As noted in the 2012 PER the CONP would like to develop the capacity for eventual flows
of 1.0 MGD.



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT  

  2.2 
 

• The WWTP is permitted through the ADEC as discussed in Section 1.2.1. Modifications to 
processes and equipment may require updates to facility operations plans, as well as 
ADEC plan review for potential permit revisions and Approval to Construct and Operate 
the rehabilitated facility.  

• Under Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management, Federal agencies funding 
and/or permitting critical facilities are required to avoid the 0.2% (500-year) floodplain or 
protect the facilities to the 0.2% chance flood level. Wastewater treatment facilities are 
critical facilities. As noted in Section 1.2.2, the CONP WWTP, while excluded from a flood 
plain by its elevation, is surrounded by a federally designated flood hazard area, Zone A. 
A FEMA LOMR-F may be required and all construction activities in the floodplain will 
require a floodplain development permit from the FNSB. 

• Work outside the previously disturbed area should be assumed to require a U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE) Section 404 wetlands permit for unavoidable impacts to 
wetlands and waters of the U.S. 

• All in water work will require both USACE 404 permits and an ADF&G Fish Habitat Permit.  

• Because there is always the potential for construction sediments to reach area 
waterbodies, contractors will be required to implement best management practices 
(BMPs) for sedimentation control on all projects. This requirement will be part of 
construction contracts regardless of project area and coverage under APDES 
Construction General Permit (ACGP). ACGP coverage is required for both the contractor 
and the CONP when the project involves an acre or more of disturbed area. ACGP 
coverage involves the creation of a storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP). As a 
community with a permitted municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4), the CONP 
may establish additional requirements as part of their MS4 program. 

2.2 ALTERNATIVE 1 - REESTABLISH CHANNEL FLOW 

The flow path for the existing discharge channel (Tanana River braid) is approximately 18,700 
linear feet long as shown on Figure 2. As noted in Section 1.2.1, the flow along this route has 
been interrupted at least twice since May 2012.  River flows are highly variable from year to year, 
and concrete conclusions cannot be made at this time, but possible causes for the variation in 
flow are: general shifting of the Tanana River flow in this area to the south; obstructions (e.g. 
beaver dams, deadfall) and general siltation of the river bed; deposits of alluvium from river 
flood events. The width of the river channel varies, but is nominally 60 +\- feet. 

Reestablishing channel flow initially seems like an obvious, immediate solution – the channel is 
blocked and not receiving flow, remove the blockage and the problem is solved.  Deepening 
the channel via excavation or dredging would also possibly increase flow. While intuitively 
simple, the actual practice may be complicated. Reestablishing channel flow will require the 
following steps: 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT  

  2.3 
 

1. Determine cause of blockage: Field observations of the full channel length 
(approximately 3.5 miles) to determine the cause or causes of the flow loss or diversion 
will be necessary. Observations will need to include visual inspection and measurement 
of channel depths. 

2. Develop an Action Plan: Once a cause for the flow loss in the discharge is determined, 
means of flow improvement can be considered including: 

a. Removal of dams is the simplest improvement option and could involve manual 
removal of trees and other obstructions. If beavers are involved, trapping of the 
animals might be considered to prevent reconstruction of the offending dams. 

b. Channel dredging to remove accumulated sediments from the river channel 
upstream of the WWTP outfall. If siltation has changed channel routing or is the 
cause of flow bypass this may be a solution, at least temporarily.  

c. Channel improvements could include a number of constructed means of 
reestablishing flow including armoring the channel, creating a new feed to the 
discharge location, etc.  

3. Maintain the channel and associated flow: As a minor braid of the Tanana River, flow in 
the channel receiving discharge cannot be expected to remain constant. Generally, this 
alternative is seen as a temporary measure that, while meeting the immediate needs, is 
expected to require periodic repetition or some form of ongoing maintenance program. 

2.2.1 Permits and Approvals 

Implementing this alternative will depend on the final project, but is expected to include the 
following permits and authorizations in addition to those required of all alternatives: 

• If dredging is required, a Land Use Permit may be required from ADNR. A Section 404 
permit from the USACE, and a ADF&G Fish Habitat Permit will be required for the work 
within a Waters of the US. 

• ADNR authorization will be required for any actions that fall outside of the Generally 
Allowed Uses on State Land, including clearing trails more than 5 feet wide and use of 
vehicles over 10,000 pounds where they may contribute to water quality degradation. 
ADNR easements will also be required for construction of structures on state land.  

• Any channel improvements will not be allowed to block the public’s access to State land 
in the area as regulated by ADNR. 

• As the ADEC APDES discharge permit is based on a mixing zone, the associated model 
will need to be reviewed if there are changes in expected flow.  



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT  

  2.4 
 

2.2.2 Information Needs 

As noted in the description of this alternative, the additional information needed for a full 
evaluation of this alternative includes: 

•  Field observations of the full channel length (approximately 3.5 miles), including visual 
inspection and measurement of channel depths. Initial evaluation can rely on handheld 
global positioning system (GPS) units for location and mapping. A new aerial should be 
sought as the aerial used in the figures is from 2012. 

• Upon determination of proposed channel improvements, detailed topographic survey of 
the channel and its cross section may be required. 

2.2.3 Costs 

Estimating costs for the Re-Establish Channel Flow alternative are not straight forward, and are 
heavily dependent upon the degree of existing obstruction, and the depth / elevation of the 
final riverbed required to re-establish flow. This alternative cannot be estimated with any 
accuracy until investigations are completed to better define the required work. 

For discussion purposes, a dredging width of 30 feet wide by 3 feet deep (about half the width 
of the existing channel) will require the removal of 3.3 cubic yards of river sediments for every 
foot of channel.  Dredging the entire 18,700 channel will require removal of approximately 
60,000 cubic yards. Access to the site is not good, and this will increase dredging costs. At $35 
per cubic yard to remove and dispose of the sediments,  dredging costs alone will be 
approximately $2.1 million; allowing for contractors overhead, survey control, and associated 
construction tasks,  construction could be as much as $2.5 million to dredge the 3 mile channel.   
In addition to these construction costs, an additional $200,000 or 8% should be expected for 
permitting and bid document preparation, and $300,000 or 12% for construction administration.   
This brings total estimated cost of the alternate to approximately $3.0 million. 

Again, costs for this alternative will be more or less with the degree of work actually required. 

The work will likely need to be repeated at periodic intervals.  Frequency can only be 
determined from experience, but perhaps at 10 to 20 year intervals.  This will be determined in 
part by the depth of initial dredging or clearing performed. 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.5

2.3 ALTERNATIVE 2 - MODIFY AND/OR RE-PERMIT EXISTING OUTFALL 

Under the current system and permit, the CONP WWTP discharges through a 6-inch pipe of 
unknown material to a point beneath riprap in a minor braid of the Tanana River. The existing 
discharge permit assumes treated effluent discharges to a mixing zone in a moving water body 
with an assumed dilution of 91:1. The allowable mixing zone is 9 meters downstream from the 
outfall in the summer (June through September) a maximum of 2 meters in width. In the winter, 
the mixing zone dimensions increase to 267 meters downstream and a maximum of 4 meters in 
width. The use of a mixing zone addresses the difficulty of consistent treatment for certain 
contaminants. The mixing zone is designated by ADEC specifically for fecal coliform bacteria, 
dissolved oxygen, pH, total chlorine residual, metals, temperature and whole effluent toxicity 
(WET). Monitoring once each season (summer and winter) is required to indicate compliance 
with fecal coliform bacteria, total residual chlorine, and pH. 

Discharge compliance has become an issue when the mixing zone is lost during low or no flow 
periods in the channel.  During these periods, treated effluent fills a portion of the river channel, 
but then infiltrates into the hyporheic zone, which is the region beneath the streambed where 
there is mixing of shallow groundwater (subsurface river base flow) and surface water.  

This alternative considers the use of infiltration and water in the hyporheic zone (surface and 
groundwater) for a mixing zone. However, ADEC has determined that current mixing zone 
regulations do not support the authorization of subsurface mixing zones (Appendix C, B. Doyle, 
2/10/15). For this reason, options that include a hyporheic mixing zone in the existing channel will 
be removed from consideration in the final feasibility study.  

To continue discharge to the existing location as a surface discharge will require modifications to 
the WWTP and is further discussed as Alternative 5 - Modify WWTP to Meet Water Quality 
Standards at Point of Discharge. 

2.3.1 Permits and Approvals 

ADEC has determined that this option cannot presently be permitted as it would require two 
mixing zones – one with channel flow as currently permitted and one with at least partial 
subsurface flow which regulations do not support. ADNR has also expressed reservations about 
the alternative and the means that could be implemented to reduce public exposure to 
wastewater without limiting public access and use in the area.  

2.3.2 Information Needs 

As this alternative is not permittable, no further information will need to be gathered in support of 
the alternative. However, if the alternative was permittable, survey, geotechnical investigations, 
groundwater and background testing, and hydrogeologic modeling would all be required.  



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.6

2.3.3 Costs 

This alternative is not presently permittable. For that reason, construction, design, and permitting 
costs have not been developed. If ADEC is willing to consider hyporheic discharge, the next step 
should be investigations and schematic design, including hydrogeologic study. This would 
require approximately $100,000 in engineering costs. 

2.4 ALTERNATIVE 3 - CONSTRUCT NEW DISCHARGE TO TANANA 
RIVER 

This alternative considers the extension of the existing discharge to a point where mixing zone 
compliance can be expected for the foreseeable future. As shown on Figure 2, the alternative 
considers construction of a new discharge pipe to a deeper, persistent braid of the Tanana 
River, 8,000 to 9,000 feet from the WWTP, on a direct route.   This length may differ from earlier 
estimates, but is based on most recently available photography. 

An alternative of this nature was considered in the 2012 PER3, although at that time the route 
extended from the existing outfall, across other river braids to the main channel. The routing on 
Figure 2 provides better access and less difficult construction as the pipe is extended in such a 
way that crossing channels is avoided. Ideally, the pipe would operate under gravity flow and 
remove the need for the effluent pumps at the WWTP, simplifying operations. This will require 
further evaluation, but with the additional length, it will probably need to be pumped. 

Freeze protection requirements will need to be considered. The existing sewer effluent main 
operating at current typical flows of about 200,000 gpm in the winter, residence time in the 
existing effluent pipe is only about 38 minutes.  The longer, larger pipe discussed below will have 
a residence time of almost 7 hours; a definite risk for freezing.  Solutions include providing heat 
trace, or using a smaller diameter pipe and pumping. Either solution will increase operational 
costs. 

The alternative can be expected to involve: 

• Construction of 9,000 to 10,000 LF of 8 to12-inch, SDR 17 HDPE piping from the WWTP to
the Tanana River. Although previously shown in a direct route, the new pipe will likely be
routed initially parallel to the existing discharge pipe, at least to the point where the new
pipe can run along the road parallel the flood control levee and interior drainage
channel B.  This will allow for WWTP operations to continue without interruption except for
final cutover. This also allows the new line to run in part through the existing sewer outfall
or section line easement. The line can be expected to intersect the sulfolane plume, and
while final pipe material selection will be made during design, HDPE is not
contraindicated and has been assumed for estimating.

3 Stantec, 2012. City of North Pole Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Preliminary 
Engineering Report. 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.7

o The new pipe will be buried at a minimum depth of 5 feet. The pipe will include 2
to 4 inches of urethane insulation inside of an aluminum jacket for freeze
protection.

o Need for heat trace must be evaluated, but for planning purposes would be 6
watts per foot, self-regulating, in conduit, along the entire length of the pipe.

o Construction of the pipe is expected to require clearing of trees and brush for a
width of at least 35 feet for a length of at least 4200 feet from the existing road to
the discharge location. The clearing width is needed not only for the pipe trench,
but for construction access, stockpile of excavation, and subsequent
maintenance access.

o Alignment will need to cross the existing flood control levy and Interior Drainage
Channel B. This will need to be constructed via a tunneled casing and require
special USACE authorization and permitting related to the levy.

• Construction of cleanout manholes every 500 feet. These will consist of a 6-foot diameter
manhole housing a “tee,” with a blind flange, 4-inch gate valve, and a 4-inch camlock
fitting for draining and flushing of the pipe.

• Construction of an 18-foot wide, single lane access road approximately 4200 LF along
the final length of pipe. The existing effluent main access road and Tanana River Flood
Control Levee will be sufficient to access the new pipe in some areas, so additional road
construction will be limited to access pads at the cleanout manholes along existing road,
and where the route is across forested and undisturbed floodplain.

• Construction of a new discharge point in the Tanana River. This is expected to consist of
a graded rock bed/ diffuser constructed from approximately 25 to 40 CY of 8- to 16-inch
stone.

• Upgrade of the existing effluent discharge pumps and electrical controls at the WWTP.

• Abandoning in place the existing effluent discharge by filling it with sand/cement slurry
after the new system is functional.



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.8

2.4.1 Permits and Approvals 

This alternative will require ADEC plan review and a new discharge permit for the WWTP, 
including a mixing zone. This has been assumed to the same as the existing permit. In addition to 
the permits and approvals generally required, the following are expected: 

• The access road and pipe across State land will require a public easement.

• USACE authorization and permitting will be required for impacts to flood control
structures.

• If fish-spawning habitat is identified at the new outfall will discharge, a mixing zone will
not be allowed.

2.4.2 Information Needs 

It may be possible to operate this alternative via gravity, resulting in reduced operational costs. 
While this needs to be verified by ground survey, available mapping from the FNSB and river flow 
modeling from the USACE suggests there is about 13 to 18 feet of fall from the WWTP to the river 
at the existing outfall during average annual low to average annual high river flows. During the 
100-year flood event, the river rises as much as 8 feet above the average annual low flow 
elevation, and available head from the WWTP to the river is reduced to 11 feet at the current 
outfall. With these elevations differences, a 12-inch diameter effluent main would be capable of 
accommodating a flow of at least 1,000 gpm from WWTP to the river under gravity flow 
conditions for all expected river elevations, including the 100-year flood. This is at least twice the 
historic peak flow at the WWTP, and sufficient for a daily plant flow of more than 1 MGD. While 
the main will not require pumps, it will operate in a surcharged, pressurized condition due to the 
elevation and profile of the pipe (as does the existing pipe). 

A thermal analysis will be required to determine freeze protection requirements, degree of 
insulation required, heat trace or heat addition requirements.  The need for heat addition may 
have significate operational cost impacts. 

Along with topographic survey of the riverbank and the selected alignment, field 
reconnaissance will be required to determine a proposed route and impacted wetlands and 
other resources. An eagle nest survey will be needed to assist in routing determination.  
Geotechnical investigations along the pipe routing will also be needed to support evaluation 
and develop preliminary costs.  

A route study and examination of potential river discharge locations will be part of any future 
evaluation of this alternative. 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.9

2.4.3 Costs 

Major items of work and associated construction costs for this alternative are summarized in 
Table 1. Costs are intended solely for comparison with the other alternatives.  The costs are 
approximate and will require investigation and design work to refine. As such, a contingency has 
been added to the total.   

Table 1: Alternate 3 Cost Summary 

Item Quantity Unit Total Cost
Clearing 3.5 acre $140,000
Insulated Arctic Pipe 10,000 Linear foot $1,500,000 
Trench and Backfill 10,000 Linear foot $300,000 
Cleanout Manholes 22 Each $220,000 
Heat Trace 10,000 Linear foot $220,000 
Electrical Services 1 Lump sum $60,000 
Access Road 4200 Linear foot $400,000 
Seeding and Erosion Control 2 Acre $60,000 
Pumping and Control 
Improvements 

1 Lump Sum $150,000 

Tunneled Casing at Levy 1 Lump Sump $60,000 
Misc and Associated Items at 
approximate 20% overall cost 

1 Lump Sum $480,000 

Subtotal $3,590,000
25% Contingency $897,500 

Total Construction Cost $4,487,500
8% Design and Permitting Allowance $359,000 

8% Construction Administration Allowance $359,000 
Alternate 3 Total Project Cost $5,205,500

This estimate covers just project development costs.  It does not consider any additional 
operations costs or associated power costs. The new effluent main should not require substantial 
maintenance or operational costs, with the exception of heat tracing or pumping systems.  A 
thorough analysis will be required to refine costs, but operation of 7000 feet of heat trace at 6 
watts / foot will require up to 1000 kw-hour per day; at 0.16 / kw-hr, this is $160 per day, or about 
$25,000 for 5 months of operation. Actual energy need will vary with temperatures, and may be 
less, but will still be a significant increase over current WWTP energy consumption. 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.10 

2.5 ALTERNATIVE 4 - CONSTRUCT EFFLUENT INFILTRATION POND 

Much of the soils in North Pole are moderately free draining sands and gravels that allow surface 
waters to infiltrate into the ground water. If the soils are sufficiently free draining, it may be 
possible to use a pond to infiltrate the treated effluent into the ground, eliminating the need for 
the existing river discharge altogether. This is the approach presently used at Eielson Air Force 
Base. The Eielson system uses a roughly 10-acre pond constructed in a gravel quarry site to 
dispose of about 800,000 gallons per day of treated effluent to subsurface waters (although the 
plant is permitted for 2.0 MGD). 

Roughly 14 acres of land immediately south of the WWTP, adjacent the Tanana River Flood 
Control Levee was purchased in 2014 by the CONP. This alternative considers developing the 
property for an effluent infiltration pond or ponds as a new effluent disposal site. 

While this alternative will require a geotechnical investigation, in concept, the alternative can 
be expected to include: 

• Clearing and grubbing of the new lot (14 acres);

• Excavation and disposal of surface soils to expose strata suitable for infiltration;

• Construction of earthen berms or dikes to form the containment for the new infiltration
ponds.  Due to location in the floodplain, initial understanding is that the ponds will need
to be located above ground, similar to the four wastewater lagoons currently located on
the WWTP site. It may be possible to quarry material from the bottom of the pond, in the
ground water table, and use the excavated material to build a part of the berms.  Even
so, imported fill materials will be required. Liner or low permeability material will likely be
required for the cores of the berms.

• Size of pond will need to be determined based upon available infiltration rate and
acceptable effluent application rate. Application rates of 2 to 4 gallons of effluent per
day are typical for treated effluent disposal ponds, if the ground will accept the flow.  For
the CONP WWTP, it is estimated a pond of 3 to 6 acres will be necessary to dispose of the
currently permitted 500,000 gallon per day effluent flow.

• The pond has a considerable footprint. A 6-acre pond has bottom dimensions of about
300 feet x 900 feet. Allowing for the 14 to 16 foot high containment berms and slopes,
overall footprint required is approximately 500 x 1100 feet, or 12.5 acres. This will occupy
nearly all of the land south of the WWTP, but appears to fit. Note that actual pond depth
will likely only be one or 2 feet, but the higher berms are necessary as the ponds will be
located within a designated floodplain.



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.11 

• Berms will be 14 to 16 feet tall, have a 30-foot wide top surface for stability and
maintenance driveways, and 2:1 side slopes. A berm of this configuration will require
about 30 cy of fill per each foot of berm, or about 100,000 cy of fill for an overall 6 acre
pond. About half of this will need to be low permeability material for the core of the
berms to prevent water flow through the berms.

• About 500 feet of 8 to 12 inch treated effluent main will extend from the existing WWTP
building to the new pond. It should be possible to direct flow by gravity to the new pond.

• A number of monitoring wells will likely be required for periodic examination of
groundwater impacts.

• The existing discharge point to the Tanana River could be maintained for emergency or
seasonal use, or abandoned.

2.5.1 Permits and Approvals 

This alternative will require ADEC plan review and modification of the discharge permit, along 
with the other permits resulting from work in a floodplain as specified in Section 2.1. 

Permit parameters, contaminate limits, and points of compliance must be considered. In 
general, WWTP disposing of effluent to the ground water have been required to meet nitrate 
limits at their property line.  Since the proposed CONP effluent disposal pond will potentially 
occupy all the available land, there will be very little buffer between the disposal pond and the 
property line, leading to difficultly meeting nitrate in groundwater limits. All of the properties 
down gradient of the proposed pond are on public water systems, and wells are not expected 
to be impacted. However, the pond will still impact at least some of the groundwater in the 
area. 

2.5.2 Information Needs 

The viability of this alternative cannot be determined with existing information. This alternative will 
need to consider and mitigate impacts to flood plains, habitat, hydrogeology, and the Flint Hills 
sulfolane plume. It may require treatment process changes. At a minimum, the final feasibility 
study will need: 

• Topographic survey of the area.

• An eagle nest survey.

• Complete geotechnical investigations, including infiltration testing and hydrogeologic
modeling the size of the basin, to determine infiltration and disposal rates, and to
examine impacts to the area groundwater including sulfolane plume.



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.12 

• Winter operations need to be examined in detail. If infiltration rates are too high, pond
depths will be shallow, and the pond will freeze and not function. It will be desirable to
separate the pond into multiple cells so that pond levels can be increased in the fall if
necessary by directing all flow to a smaller cell. Another possibility will be to excavate
deeply into the ground water below the site, such that the bottom of the pond is 12 or
more feet below the water surface.  A pond of this depth will resist freezing solid, but
applies the effluent directly to the groundwater without any filtering by the soil.

The need for and degree of flood protection required for a new infiltration pond facility will need 
to be considered, and potentially negotiated. Since the WWTP is discharging only treated 
effluent and since the effluent is disinfected, in a flood event, the effluent will not pose a 
significant hazard should it leave the site mingled with floodwater.  

If a temporary release of treated effluent to floodwater is acceptable, this will allow for the 
elimination or reduction of the infiltration pond berms. This reduces the project construction costs 
by at least $1 to $2 million dollars.  

Another consideration to be evaluated is the final depth of the pond required for freeze 
protection. As part of this consideration, not currently included in the cost estimate below, the 
quarried material will likely be suitable for use in the containment berms; however, in the event 
the berms are not needed for flood protection, it may be possible for CONP to sell the quarried 
material for use elsewhere, offsetting the project cost. 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.13 

2.5.3 Costs 

Based upon a 6-acre pond as described here, major items of work and associated construction 
costs for this alternative are summarized in Table 2. Costs are intended solely for comparison with 
the other alternatives. The costs are approximate and will require investigation and design work 
to refine. As such, a contingency has been added to the total.   

Table 2: Alternate 4 Cost Summary 

Item Quantity Unit Total Cost
Clearing 12 acre $360,000
Excavation of Surface Soils 30,000 cubic yard $600,000 
Berm construction 50,000 cubic yard $1,500,000 
Liner or Low Permeability Berm 
Core Fill 

50,000 cubic yard $1,500,000 

Topsoil, Seeding, and Erosion 
Control 

6 Acre $180,000 

Insulated Arctic Pipe 500 linear foot $75,000 
Trench and Backfill 500 linear foot $15,000 
Valves,  Control Structures 1 linear foot $50,000 
Monitoring Wells 6 Each $72,000 
Misc and Associated Items at 
approximate 20% overall cost 

1 lump sum $870,000 

Subtotal $5,222,000
25% Contingency $1,305,500 

Total Construction Cost $6,527,500
8% Design and Permitting Allowance $522,200 

6% Construction Administration Allowance $391,650 
Alternate 4 Total Project Cost $7,441,350

This estimate covers just project development costs. It does not consider any additional 
operations costs. The 8% allowance for design also covers the cost of the geotechnical 
investigation and groundwater hydrology study. 

As previously stated, if flood protection is not necessary the berms can be greatly reduced, with 
associated construction cost savings of $1 to $2 million. Likewise, if existing gravels are of 
sufficient quality, it may be possible for CONP to quarry and sell this material to offset project 
costs.   Combined, these reductions may bring total project cost into the $4 to $5 million range. 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.14 

2.6 ALTERNATIVE 5 - MODIFY WWTP TO MEET WATER QUALITY 
STANDARDS AT POINT OF DISCHARGE 

Alternate 5 arose from conversions with ADEC staff on February 5, 2015, meeting minutes are 
included in Appendix C. During the meeting, the idea of maintaining the existing discharge as a 
surface application arose. For this to be feasible, the treatment processes would have to 
change to meet surface discharge requirements and be protective of the public recreating in 
the discharge area.  

The existing mixing zone addresses the difficulty of consistent treatment for certain contaminants 
as previously discussed. Under this alternative, the WWTP will be upgraded to comply with water 
quality standards for contact recreation without a mixing zone. The standards of Table 3 would 
apply, along with a large number of additional requirements for parameters not currently 
regulated. Development of the new treatment scheme is beyond the scope of this report and 
will require a focused feasibility study that evaluates and further characterizes existing influent 
and effluent, and then evaluates treatment options. Once a treatment scheme was developed 
a bench study would likely be warranted to determine the effectiveness.  

For consideration in this study, meeting water quality standards at the discharge point would 
require upgrading the CONP as a minimum to tertiary treatment. This would likely involve 
filtration of lagoon effluent; this in turn requires sludge handling and dewatering systems. As both 
fecal coliforms and chlorine levels must be quite low, maintaining chlorine residual in the 
discharge pipe will likely be required to minimize fecal coliform growth.  Dechlorination would be 
provided only in the last few hundred feet to remove the chlorine. Nutrient (ammonia, and 
nitrate) removal criteria would need to be determined. In the February 5th meeting, Marie 
Klingman noted that future permits are likely to include ammonia limits. Since the aerated 
lagoons and their associated bacteria tend to nitrify (form nitrates from ammonia and organics 
in the wastewater), a denitrification process is needed to convert the nitrates to nitrogen gas. 
The denitrification reaction is typically controlled in a separate treatment process, where anoxic 
conditions are maintained so that bacteria use the nitrate nitrogen for respiration. At present, 
the denitrification processes most applicable to cold regions are proprietary reactors using 
specialized biology.  For these processes, generally, a carbon source chemical must be added 
to the reactor, such as sugar or methanol, to maintain the biological reaction. The need for 
additional chemicals and the complexity of the process add operational cost.  



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.15 

Table 3: Sample Contact Recreation Water Quality Standards 

Pollutant, for 
fresh water uses 

Contact Recreation Water Quality Standards 
Criteria 

Current Effluent Permit Conditions 
with Mixing Zone 

Fecal Coliform 
Bacteria 

100 FC/100 ml, average month  
200 FC/100 ml maximum 

200 / 100 ml  average monthly3  
400/ 100 ml average weekly  
800/100 ml maximum daily 

Dissolved 
Oxygen 

4 mg/l minimum 2.0 mg/l minimum daily 

pH 6.5 to 8.5 standard unit as all times 6.0 to 9.0 standard unit at all times 
Toxic and Other 
Deleterious 
Organic and 
Inorganic 
Substances 

May not exceed the numeric criteria for drinking 
water shown in the Alaska Water Quality Criteria 
Manual for Toxic and Other Deleterious Organic 
and Inorganic Substances, dated December 12, 
2008 

Total Residual 
Chlorine 

19 µg/L (one hour average) 
11 µg/L (four-day average) 

0.5 mg/l and 2.1 lbs/day average 
monthly 2  
0.75 mg/l and 3.1 lbs/day 
average weekly 2 
1.00 mg/L and 4.2 lbs/day 
maximum daily 2 

Notes: 
1. Based on value in Alaska Water Quality Criteria Manual for Toxic and Other Deleterious Organic

and Inorganic Substances.
2. Loading (in Ibs/day) = concentration (in mg/L:) * concurrent flow (in MGD) * 8.34.
3. The monthly value is calculated as a geometric mean, i.e. the nth root of the product of the

individual data points.

The 2012 PER for the CONP WWTP examined treatment capacity upgrades for the WWTP. While 
not targeted to a contact recreation standard, that report provides some indication of the 
construction and equipment required for a tertiary WWTP process.  Based on the 2012 PER, the 
alternative can be expected to involve: 

• Construction of a post lagoon treatment system consisting of:

o Additional WWTP building space, approximately 4,800-square feet (sf) for the new
process equipment. The WWTP can be expanded or a new structure placed
onsite, ideally on the effluent discharge from Cell 4. Due to location in the
floodplain, the structure will need to be located at approximately the same
elevation as the existing WWTP on earthen berms.

o Rerouting of the discharge piping to the new treatment process with potential
changes to placement or sizing of the existing effluent discharge pumps.

o Pumping systems to feed the filters, assumed to be two variable speed centrifugal
effluent pumps, each suitable for 750 gpm, and 15 feet of head (5.0 hp).



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.16 

o Associated controls and monitoring equipment, including flow metering of
effluent and influent, SCADA system connection.

• Provide a denitrification / nutrient removal treatment process.  This element was not
addressed in the 2012 PER,  and requires considerable engineering,  but will likely
incorporate:

o Biologically active trickling sand filter or comparable filtering process, with
associated recycle systems.

o Carbon source storage and feed system, frequently methanol based.
o Associated pumps and control systems.
o This equipment is located within the building described above.

• As filtration systems generate a concentrated waste stream of wastewater solids and
sludge, a system of disposal would be required. The 2012 PER4 recommended the use of
a sludge filter press and dredge for handling lagoon sludge. This includes:

o A building addition of approximately 400-sf to house the equipment, along with
associated electrical supply, potable water plumbing for rinse-down purposes,
and floor drains and drain piping to either the headworks or one of the lagoons.

o Construction of a sludge filter press and appropriate slurry storage and feed
systems.

o Storage and removal of dewatered sludge to a permitted disposal location.

• Construction of a dechlorination system. The WWTP presently uses calcium thiosulfate
solutions batched on site and injects this into a discharge weir at the end of the chlorine
contact chambers. Moving this to the end of the discharge piping will involve:

o Construction of a small building (approximately 200-sf) within 200 feet of the
existing discharge to house new dechlorination system. The building can be
placed along the existing access road but will require additional ADNR property.
The building will need to be heated and have power to run pumps.

o Interception of the existing 6-inch pipe and construction of a manhole for
sampling and calcium thiosulfate injection.

4 Stantec, 2012. City of North Pole Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Preliminary 
Engineering Report. 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.17 

Operator training and operational requirements are expected to increase with the complexity of 
the process in this alternative. While operations costs for this alternative have not yet been 
developed, they are also expected to be substantially higher.   The 2012 PER estimated 
operational costs for a filtration and sludge processing system similar to that described here 
would be approximately $300,000 per year. 

2.6.1 Permits and Approvals 

This alternative will require ADEC plan review for the new WWTP system and a new discharge 
permit for the WWTP, without a mixing zone.  

Building permits will be required for the renovation and construction of structures. An ADNR 
easement will be needed for the new facilities at the discharge point.  

The complexity of the process will require additional operator with a higher certification than 
existing staff.  

2.6.2 Information Needs 

Process selection under this alternative will require a substantial feasibility study to consider the 
variety of options available, their associated space and operational requirements. Additional 
analysis of the constituents of the existing effluent may also be required. At the conclusion of the 
process selection, a bench test will likely be warranted to confirm selection and finalize 
construction design.   This would be followed by engineering design of the system. 

In addition to the process selection, topographic survey of the dechlorination system site and 
field reconnaissance will be required to determine impacted wetlands and other resources. 
Geotechnical investigations may also be required to support foundation system determination. 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

2.18 

2.6.3 Costs 

Based upon the construction described above and previous estimating done for the 2012 PER, 
major items of work and associated construction costs for this alternative are summarized in 
Table 4.  Costs are intended solely for comparison with the other alternatives. The costs are 
approximate and will require investigation and design work to refine. As such, a contingency has 
been added to the total.   

Table 4: Alternative 5 Cost Summary 

Item Quantity Unit Total Cost
Clearing 0.5 Acre $20,000
WWTP building (all) 5,200 sf $1,820,000 
Earthwork and fill pads 13,000 CY $390,000 
Denitrification Process 1 Lump Sump $2,500,000 
Pumping and Control 
Improvements 

1 Lump sum $250,000 

Sludge Filter Press 1 Each $250,000 
Electrical services and upgrades 1 Lump Sump $200,000 
Additional standby generator 1 Lump Sump $350,000 
Dechlorination System 1 Lump Sump $60,000 
Dechlorination Building 200 sf $70,000 
Manhole 3 Each $30,000
Misc. and Associated Items at 
approximate 20% overall cost 

1 lump sum $1,188,000 

Subtotal $7,128,000
25% Contingency $1,782,000 

Total Construction Cost $8,910,000
8% Design and Permitting Allowance $712,800 

8% Construction Administration Allowance $712,800 
Alternate 5 Total Project Cost $10,335,600



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

3.1

3.0 AGENCY AND STAKEHOLDER SCOPING  

3.1 SCOPING ACTIVITY 

In gathering information for the project, Stantec completed an agency coordination and 
environmental  “scoping” process. The intent of the scoping process is to involve interested 
agencies, at the earliest opportunity, in identifying the potential social, economic, or 
environmental impacts of the proposed actions. This process contributes to refining alternatives 
and mitigation measures, and identifying any required permits. 

The scoping activities for the CONP Wastewater Effluent Discharge Study included solicitation for 
comments from applicable federal, state, and local agencies and additional stakeholders. 
Appendix A contains the full list of scoping letter recipients. The scoping letter and its 
attachments are in Appendix B. The scoping letter provides background on the project, 
alternatives being considered with anticipated impacts, and preliminary research results of 
publically available environmental information. Follow up calls and emails were also made to 
non-responsive recipients. Agency and stakeholder responses and correspondence related to 
the scoping process are provided in Appendix C. 

3.1.1 ADEC Teleconference 

As ADEC is the primary agency for permitting wastewater facilities and is the issuer of the NOV 
being addressed, a teleconference was scheduled with representatives of the Wastewater 
Discharge Program following the compilation of previous scoping responses. The meeting was to 
discuss ADEC permitting requirements for the proposed alternatives and was held on February 5, 
2015, with ADEC staff calling in from Fairbanks and Juneau.  

During the meeting, it was confirmed that re-establishing channel flow is considered a 
temporary measure and likely requires remodeling of the mixing zone. Potential modification of 
the outfall and the use of riverbed flow as an optional mixing zone when stream flow was 
absence was discussed and in later discussions internal to ADEC determined to not be allowable 
under current regulations. The use of the existing outfall with plant modifications was also 
discussed as an interesting option leading to its inclusion as a separate alternative. Full minutes 
from the meeting are included in Appendix C. 



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

3.2

3.2 RESPONSES 

Responses that are summarized in Section 3.3 were received from the following agencies: 

ADEC Division of Water, Wastewater Discharge 
ADEC Contaminated Sites Program 
ADF&G Division of Habitat 
ADNR Division of Mining, Land & Water 
FNSB Department of Community Planning  
FNSB Department of Public Works 
USACE Chena River Lakes Flood Control 
USACE Fairbanks Field Office 

Agencies and stakeholders contacted, who had no comments at this time: 

USFWS Fisheries 
USFWS Conservation Planning 
USFWS Endangered Species 
Fort Wainright 
ADNR Water Resources Program 
ADNR Historic Division 
ADEC Division of Water  
NMFS 
US Environmental Protection Agency 
Agencies and stakeholders contacted who did not respond: 

ADNR Division of Forestry 
Alaska Railroad 
Flint Hills Refinery 
Petrostar Refinery 
North Pole High School 
Golden Valley Electric Association 
Doyon Limited 

3.3 ISSUES IDENTIFIED 

The following issues were raised either through correspondence or during phone conversations 
with agency representatives. Full copies of agency and stakeholder correspondence are 
provided in Appendix D. 

• Construction activities in floodplain will require further consultation with the FNSB
Floodplain Administrator and a Floodplain Permit will likely be necessary.

• A Fish Habitat Permit from ADF&G will be required for any in-water work.



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

3.3

• If dredging is required, a Land Use Permit may be required from ADNR.  It will also require
a Section 404 permit from USACE.

• ADNR authorization is required for any actions that fall outside of the Generally Allowed
Uses on State Land, so authorization may be required depending on selected
improvements for re-establish channel flow. There are also a number of alternatives that
may require ADNR easements.

• Any channel improvements will not be allowed to block the public’s access to State land
in the area as regulated by ADNR.

• Modifying or re-permitting the existing outfall may expose the public to wastewater and
will require a new easement if a new discharge is constructed.  ADNR notes that this
location has regular use by the general public for a variety of activities.

• Construction activities in the vicinity of the Tanana River Levee and Interior Drainage
Channel B will require coordination with FNSB Department of Public Works and USACE.

• A USACE Department of the Army permit under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act will
be necessary for most alternatives.

• Current ADEC mixing zone regulations do not support the authorization of subsurface
mixing zones.

• ADEC Contaminated Sites Program does not have any major concerns regarding
construction of a wastewater effluent infiltration pond in the proposed location.
Sulfolane concentrations north of the refinery along the south western portion of the
groundwater contaminant plume have  been declining due to remediation efforts from
the Refinery’s groundwater treatment system.  The aquifer in the project area is large with
high transmissivity and no discernable impact from contaminated sites is foreseen.  If the
effluent infiltration pond alternative is pursued, assessment of pond volume and
infiltration rates will need to be evaluated.



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

4.1

4.0 DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
Of the five alternatives presented in this report, one is not feasible for regulatory reasons. 
Alternative 2 - - Modify and/or Re-Permit Existing Outfall has been removed from consideration 
as ADEC has indicated the proposed discharge of the effluent (at current treatment levels) to 
the river bed surface is not permissible under current ADEC regulations.   

Some of the considerations for the remaining alternatives are summarized in Table 5. 

Table 5: Alternative Comparison 

Item 
Alternative 1 - 
Reestablishing 
Channel Flow 

Alternative 3 - 
Construct New 
Discharge to 
Tanana River 

Alternative 4 - 
Construct Effluent 
Infiltration Pond 

Alternative 5 - 
Modify WWTP to 

Meet Water 
Quality 

Standards at 
Discharge 

Long-term solution No Yes Yes Yes 

Increases treatment 
complexity No No No – minor at 

most. 

Yes 
Multiple new 

process elements 

Increases operational 
complexity or cost No Yes 

Heat trace No 
Yes 

New process, 
chemicals, staff. 

Cost $3.0 million, 
reoccurring $5,205,500 $7,441,350 $10,335,600

Mixing Zone Yes Yes No No 

Discharge permitting 
requirements 

No change, 
keep mixing 

zone 

No change, 
keep mixing 

zone 

Individual state 
permit 

Meet Water 
Quality 

Standards, no 
mixing zone 

Requires access 
through ADNR land Yes Yes No Yes

Alternative 1 - Reestablishing Channel Flow is feasible for temporary compliance, but, as noted 
by both the ADNR and ADEC, its long-term suitability is highly questionable. However, due to the 
relatively low cost of the effort, it is recommended an investigation be performed to determine if 
an “easy” (e.g. dam or blockage removal), albeit temporary fix may be possible to bring the 
CONP back into compliance while a long-term solution is sought. As the likelihood of a viable 
long-term solution to maintain flow in the braid for the mixing zone is considered low, it is not 
recommended that additional funds be expended for the survey, engineering, etc., otherwise 
needed to advance this alternative in the final feasibility study.  



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

4.2

The remaining three alternatives are very different in terms of their impact the overall WWTP 
operations.  

• Alternative 3 - Construct New Discharge to Tanana River would reestablish compliant
operations in a manner similar to the existing; however, it is expected to increase
operational costs related to heat trace and/or pumping. Operators will continue to
maintain an outfall, which will be at the end of a new, longer road. Security of the
existing outfall has been an issue that will not be resolved with this solution. Operator
training requirements are not expected increase. There does not appear to be any
reason this alternative would not work, aside from potential freezing issues that can be
addressed via heat trace.

• Alternative 4 - Construct Effluent Infiltration Pond potentially has a high initial capital cost;
however, there is good potential to reduce the required berm construction and thus the
project cost to about the same as Alternative 3, with the advantage that there are no
operational costs for pumping or heat trace. This alternative removes the requirements
for a mixing zone and puts all WWTP operations on CONP property, with no outfall
required. Operator training requirements are not expected to increase. This alternative
does however rely upon the infiltrative capacity of the existing soils beneath the pond,
which must be investigated by geotechnical exploration and field testing to determine if
this alternative will work.

• Alternative 5 - Modify WWTP to Meet Water Quality Standards at Discharge has both the
highest capital and operational cost being the most complex system. Operator training
will need to be increased significantly to operate the new systems. We do not believe this
alternative is worth considering given the relative simplicity and much lower costs of the
other alternatives.

For the reasons stated, both Alternatives 3 and 4 appear to be viable and achieve the 
compliance goals. When both operational and construction costs are considered, these two 
Alternatives are roughly comparable in cost, and neither alternative is clearly superior to the 
other. At this point, additional information is required to select the better alternative, confirm 
viability, and refine project costs. Two potential courses of action are recommended: 

1. Complete geotechnical investigation of Alternative 4, including infiltration pilot testing to
verify feasibility of design concept. Investigate and refine flood mitigation requirements
for the alternative; if flood protection berms may be eliminated, refine project cost
estimate.  If resulting project is more economical that Alternate 3, continue forward with
feasibility study, design, and construction of this alternative. In the event infiltration testing
does not support the design concept, or cost remains high, proceed with Alternate 3. This
approach saves engineering costs, but may not deliver the best alternative, and wastes
time if the infiltration testing is not successful.



CITY OF NORTH POLE PRELIMINARY WASTEWATER  March 6, 2015 
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUMMARY REPORT 

4.3

Alternatively: 

2. Proceed with full evaluation of both Alternative 3 and 4, completing investigations,
preliminary design and feasibility study to better define, and ultimately chose between
alternatives, the move to design and construction. This approach will arrive at the best
alternative, but has additional engineering costs as it requires both options be evaluated.

We will work with the CONP to determine which course of action to pursue once the City and 
ADEC has had opportunity to review and comment on the findings of this preliminary report. 

Because of its complexity and cost, Alternative 5 is not recommended for further development, 
unless both Alternatives 3 and 4 are found to be impractical.  







1 
 

125 Snowman Ln 
North Pole, Alaska  
99705 
907-888-4444 
907-488-8584 

City of North Pole 
Office of the Mayor 

Memo 
To: North Pole City Council  

From: Mayor Ward 

cc:  

Date: May 12, 2015 

Re: Sale of City Assets Ordinance 

  

Councilmembers, 

In an effort to increase efficiency and receive more value for our surplus items I am introducing 
an ordinance to change our code in regards to the sale of our surplus assets.  This ordinance is 
designed to allow the City to retain the services of an auction house to sell our surplus assets 
through a competitive quote process.   

The “Request for Quote” (RFQ) was written with influence from the University of Alaska 
Fairbanks procurement office.  The University of Alaska Fairbanks has found this process to be 
quite beneficial and easy to use.   

The change in the code would allow us to bring our surplus items to an auction house after the 
council has approved them for sale.  At that time the council may also establish a minimum bid 
for any item.  The changes in code would apply to all departments and all surplus items would 
be sold through the auction house.  A report of the sale price of each item will be presented to 
the council at the next council meeting following the auction date.   

 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: May 18, 2015  

Possible Adoption: June 1, 2015   
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE 15-06 3 
 4 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO AMEND 5 

TITLE 4, CHAPTER 20, SECTION .010, SALE OF CITY PROPERTY 6 
  7 
WHEREAS, changes to the practices, regulations and policies is a continually changing 8 

requirement; and 9 

WHEREAS, The City of North Pole desires to dispose of surplus items of value; and 10 

WHEREAS, contracting with an auction house is an appropriate way to dispose of surplus city 11 

assets; and 12 

WHEREAS, auctions held by local auction experts are more likely to garner more participants 13 

than the traditional auction process of the City; and 14 

WHEREAS, auction houses have multiple auctions through the year that the city may be able to 15 

take advantage of for sale of surplus equipment; and 16 

WHEREAS, acquisition of an auction contractor shall be done per procurement processes in 17 

code; and 18 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 19 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 20 

Section 2. Title 4 Revenue and Finance, Chapter 20.010 Sale of City Assets is amended in the 21 

North Pole Code of Ordinances as by inserting the text italicized, underlined and in red:  22 

 23 

4.20.010 Sale of real and personal property.  24 

A. The City may sell, dispose or donate any City-owned real or personal property except 25 

where restricted by Section 13.4 of the Home Rule Charter, when in the judgment of the 26 

City Council it is no longer required for public use. 27 

B. Any item of City-owned property, determined by the City Council to be of value and no 28 

longer required for public use, shall be disposed of in accordance with the procedures 29 

outlined in this chapter. 30 

C. The City may acquire the services of an auction company to advertise and sell at auction 31 

items for disposal as approved by the City Council in accordance with the procedures 32 

outlined in this chapter.  33 

D. Public Sale, Lease or Disposition Procedure for City-Owned Property. 34 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: May 18, 2015  

Possible Adoption: June 1, 2015   
 

1. The administration shall prepare a list of items determined to be surplus to the 35 

needs of the City and present it to Council for determination of status and 36 

disposition procedures. The disposition procedures include time and date of sale, 37 

type of sale, minimum price if any and terms. 38 

2. The North Pole City Council may establish minimum bids for any item to be 39 

disposed of.  40 

3. The City Clerk auction contractor shall notify the City of any auction including City 41 

assets and advertise the sale in a newspaper of general circulation in the City at 42 

least fifteen days in advance of the date of the sale and post in at least three public 43 

places in the City. 44 

4. The administration shall present to Council a list of all items sold and the proceeds 45 

from the sale at the regularly scheduled meeting following the sale and remove any 46 

item from the City asset management list. 47 

5. The City Council may determine if it is in the best interest of the City to donate City 48 

property to other parties. Donation of City property shall be made by ordinance 49 

setting forth the items or real property, the terms and the party accepting the 50 

donation. (Ord. 94-7 § 2, 1994; Ord. 84-3 § 2-13, 1984) 51 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective at 5:00 pm on the first City 52 

business day following its adoption. 53 

 54 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 55 

1st day of June, 2015.  56 

 57 

 58 

        _____________________________ 59 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 60 

 61 

 62 

ATTEST: 63 

 64 

 65 

___________________________ 66 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 67 

North Pole City Clerk 68 

 69 

 70 

 71 

 72 

 73 

 74 

 75 

PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent: 

 



1 
 

125 Snowman Ln 
North Pole, Alaska  
99705 
907-888-4444 
907-488-8584 

City of North Pole 

Office of the Mayor 

Memo 

To: North Pole City Council  

From: Mayor Ward 

cc:  

Date: May 12, 2015 

Re: Sale of City Assets Ordinance 

  

Councilmembers, 

In an effort to increase efficiency and receive more value for our surplus items I am introducing 
an ordinance to change our code in regards to the sale of our surplus assets.  This ordinance is 
designed to allow the City to retain the services of an auction house to sell our surplus assets 
through a competitive quote process.   

The “Request for Quote” (RFQ) was written with influence from the University of Alaska 
Fairbanks procurement office.  The University of Alaska Fairbanks has found this process to be 
quite beneficial and easy to use.   

The change in the code would allow us to bring our surplus items to an auction house after the 
council has approved them for sale.  At that time the council may also establish a minimum bid 
for any item.  The changes in code would apply to all departments and all surplus items would 
be sold through the auction house.  A report of the sale price of each item will be presented to 
the council at the next council meeting following the auction date.   

 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward 

Introduced and Adopted: May 18, 2015 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 

RESOLUTION 15-11 2 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE PURCHASE OF 3 

PENTEX CORPORATION AS A CRITICAL STEP TO THE TIMELY 4 

ADVANCEMENT OF THE INTERIOR ENERGY PROJECT  5 

WHEREAS, Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority ("the Authority") proposes to 6 

purchase in the amount in excess of $53,000,000 to provide the funds to and acquire Pentex 7 

Corporation and assets to advance the Interior Energy Project, (IEP), for the development, 8 

acquisition, and operation of various facilities that supply natural gas from the Cook Inlet area to 9 

residents of the Fairbanks North Star Borough and other existing supply contracts (the 10 

"Project"); and 11 

WHEREAS, under the Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority Act, the Authority 12 

must solicit the review and advice of the local governing body; and 13 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate and desirable to adopt this resolution supporting this Project: 14 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Pole City Council supports the 15 

Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority (AIDEA) in the development and operation 16 

of the Project within and for the economic benefit of the City of North Pole and Fairbanks North 17 

Star Borough residents. 18 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 19 
18th day of May, 2015. 20 

____________________________________ 21 

                          Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 22 

ATTEST: 23 
 24 

___________________________________ 25 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 26 
North Pole City Clerk 27 

 28 

 29 

 30 

PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent  
 






















































































































































	AG-05-18-15
	Min-05-04-15
	Fairbanks is a Family Friendly Place
	Contract Amendment with Stantec - Phase 2 sewer outfall recommendation--COMPLETE--May 2015
	Recommendation to accept Stantec Phase 2 proposal
	Stantec Sewer Outfall Phase 2 Proposal--May 2015
	NOV letter from ADEC--Nov 2014
	Phase 1 professional services agreement--SANTEC
	NOV response--Body of text only--March 2015--
	Cover
	Table of Contents
	Acronyms and Abbreviations
	1.0 Introduction
	1.1 Project Background
	1.2 Project Planning Area
	Figure 1 Location and Vicinity Map

	2.0 Proposed Alternatives
	Figure 2 Proposed Alternatives
	Figure 3 Effluent Infiltration and Re-Permit Alternatives
	2.1 General Requirements
	2.2 Alternative 1 - Reesablish Channel Flow
	Alternative 2 - Modify and/or Re-Permit Existing Outfall
	Alternative 3 - Construct New Discharge to Tanana River
	Alternative 4 - Construct Effluent Infiltration Pond
	Alternative 5 - Modify WWTP to Meet Qater Quality Standards at Point of Discharge
	Untitled

	3.0 Agency and Stakeholder Scoping
	3.1 Scoping Activity
	3.2 Responses
	3.3 Issues Identified

	4.0 Discussion and Recommendations

	ADEC's response to City's NOV submission

	Memo 5-12-15 auction house
	Ord 15-06 title sale of city assets

	Res 15-11 Pentex purchase
	ADEA Interior Energy Project Slides- Res 15-11




